
Agenda Report 

December 12, 2016 
l 

TO: Honorable Mayor and C1ty Council 

FROM: Department of Public Works 

SUBJECT: CONTRACT AWARD TO VART CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR CITYWIDE 
SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS- 2017 FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $664,000 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It 1s recommended that the C1ty Council 

1 Fmd the project proposed herem to be categoncally exempt under the Cahforma 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) GUidelines m accordance w1th T1tle 14, Chapter 
3, Class 1, Section 15301, mmor alterations of ex1st1ng public fac1lltJes mvolvmg 
negligible or no expans1on of use beyond that previously ex1stmg at the t1me of the 
lead agency's determmat1on, and 

2 Accept the b1d dated November 30, 2016 submitted by Vart Construction, Inc 1n 
response to spec1f1cat1ons for C1tyw1de Sidewalk Improvements - 2017 and 
authonze the C1ty Manager to enter mto a contract not to exceed $664,000 wh1ch 
Includes the base contract amount of $587,485 and a contmgency of $76,515 to 
provrde for any necessary change orders 

BACKGROUND: 

Sectron 12 04 of the Pasadena Mun1c1pal Code states that repa1r of damaged sidewalk 
IS the adjacent property owner's respons1brllty Currently, th1s ordmance 1s tnggered 
when a bu1ld1ng perm1t valued over $20,000 IS obta1ned or when a property sale 
requ1res an occupancy mspect1on Property owners may h1re a contractor to repa1r 
ex1stmg damage w1th a Public Works permtt, or pay funds to the C1ty to program the 
repa1r 1nto one of the C1ty's annual concrete repa1r contracts 

In Apnl 2015, the Munrc1pal Serv1ces Comm1ttee (MSC) approved a new "C1tyw1de 
Sidewalk Improvement Program" to address the approximately 1 1 m1lhon square feet of 
damaged Sidewalk throughout the C1ty wh1ch 1s est1mated to cost $17 m1lllon to repa1r 
At that meet1ng, staff was requested to create a new Cap1tal Improvement Program 
(CIP) project, pursue fundmg and work w1th the Access1b1hty and D1sab1llty Comm1ss1on 
to establish a s1dewalk repa1r prrorrty cntena 
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The followmg pnonty cntena was established m partnership w1th the Access1b11tty and 
D1sab1llty Comm1ss1on and presented to C1ty Council durmg the adoption of the FY 2016 
CIP 

• H1gh traff1c volume streets 
• Severe vert1cal nse of the Sidewalk 
• H1gh pedestnan volume areas 
• ADA venf1ed complamts rece1ved 

The contract proposes Sidewalk repa1r at vanous locat1ons throughout the C1ty (see 
Attachment A) A f1nd1ng of compliance w1th the General Plan was prev1ously made and 
IS shown on page 2 8 of the FY 2017 Cap1tal Improvement Program, Clfyw1de S1dewa/k 
Improvements 

The Department of Public Works prepared plans and spec1f1cat1ons for the project and 
m accordance w1th Sect1on 4 08 070 of the Pasadena Mun1c1pal Code, b1ds were 
requested and rece1ved The project was advertised m the Pasadena Journal on 
November 3, 2016 In add1t1on, the Not1ce lnv1tmg B1ds was published m four trade 
publications and listed on the C1ty's webs1te, wh1ch generated not1ces to 21 local 
vendors Twenty-one contractors obtamed b1d packets, 11 of whom submitted b1ds for 
the project 

Followmg advert1s1ng, b1ds were rece1ved on November 30, 2016, and are as follows 

B1dder 
1 Vart Construction, Inc , Glendale 
2 CEM Construction, Downey 
3 S & H C1v1lworks, Colton 
4 FS Construction, Inc , Sylmar 
5 Kalban Inc , Santa Clanta 
6 M1nco Construction, Gardena 
7 Leomda Builders, Glendora 
8 Taro Enterpnses, Inc, Oxnard 
9 EBS General Eng1neenng, Corona 
10 Coleman Construction, Inc, Los Angeles 
11 E C Construction, South El monte 

Eng1neer's Est1mate 

Amount($) 
$587,485 
$618,965 
$621,540 
$658,860 
$688,014 
$726,705 
$733,960 
$856,540 
$996,706 

$1,257,418 
$1,330,981 

$612,000 

The lowest b1d rece1ved was four percent lower than the Eng1neer's Estimate of 
$612,000 The Engineer's Estimate was m ltne w1th the average of the three lowest 
b1dders 
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Due to the favorable b1d results, the Department of Public Works IS addmg to the 
Contractor's scope of work add1t1onal damaged sidewalk repa1r locations that would have 
been addressed m the C1tyw1de S1dewalk Improvements- 2018 project Consequently, 
the contmgency allowance, normally ten percent of b1d amount, IS 13 percent to allow the 
department to take advantage of low umt pnces for vanous concrete repa1r 1tems 

It 1s recommended that Vart Construction, Inc be awarded a contract for th1s project as 
they are the lowest respons1ve and responsible bidder The proposed contract w1th Vart 
Construction, Inc fully complies w1th the Compet1t1ve B1ddmg and L1v1ng Wage 
Ordmances In add1tJon, the proposed contract fully complies w1th the Preva1llng Wage 
Law (Senate B1ll 7) per Resolution 9406 adopted by the C1ty Council on December 15, 
2014 The contractor has md1cated that the award of th1s contract w1ll result 1n two new 
h1res to the present workforce A Local H1nng Prov1s1on to not1fy the labor umons of the 
goal to employ qualified Pasadena res1dents for 75 percent of new labor work hours on 
the proJect was mcluded m the proJect spec1f1cat1ons 

Vart Construction, Inc currently has one contract w1th the C1ty and one purchase order 
Add1t1onally Vart Construction, Inc 1s recommended to be awarded the Dramage 
Improvements of Flat Streets 2016-2017 proJect on December 12, 2016 for an amount 
not to exceed $670,000 Vart Construction, Inc has completed contracts and purchase 
orders totaling approximately $2,155,000 on vanous C1ty projects smce 2010 

The contract for th1s project w1ll be set as follows 

Base B1d 
Contingency Allowance 
Contract "Not to Exceed" Amount 

$ 587,485 
$ 76.515 

$664,000 

It 1s ant1c1pated that construction Will begm m February 2017 and be completed 1n August 
2017 

\ 

COUNCIL POLICY CONSIDERATION: 

The proJect IS consistent w1th the C1ty Council's goals to Improve, mamtam and enhance 
public fac1ht1es and Infrastructure, and 1m prove mobility and access1b11Jty throughout the 
C1ty It also supports the Public Fac1ht1es Element of the General Plan by mamta1mng 
public fac1llt1es to enhance the quality of life of the commun1ty 

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 

The C1ty's Environmental Adm1n1strator recommends that the C1ty Council determme the 
proposed project to be exempt under CEQA 1n accordance w1th T1tle 14, Chapter 3, 
Class 1, Sect1on 15301, m1nor alterations of ex1stmg pubhc fac1ht1es mvolvmg negligible 
or no expansion of use beyond that ex1stmg at the t1me of lead agency's determmat1on 
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FISCAL IMPACT: 

The cost of this contract 1s $664,000 and the total cost of this action will be $734,000 
Funding for this action will be addressed by the utilization of ex1stmg budgeted 
appropnat1ons m the C1tyw1de Sidewalk Improvements (Budget Account 73913) CIP 
project It IS anticipated that all of the cost Will be spent In FY 2017 and FY 2018 

The followmg table represents a summary of the sources of funds that will be used 

Citywide Sidewalk Improvements (Budget Account 73913) 

Total Sources 

The following table represents a project summary 

Base Bid 
Contingency 
Contract Administration 
Total Fiscal Impact 

Prepared by 

Approved by 

ST~ 
C1ty Manager 

Attachment A- Map of Citywide Sidewalk Improvements - 2017 

$734,000 

$ 734,000 

$ 587,485 
$ 76,515 
$ 70,000 
$ 734,000 

I 
\. 


